



County of Los Alamos

Los Alamos, NM 87544
www.losalamosnm.us

Agenda - Final County Council - Regular Session

Tuesday, August 9, 2016

6:00 PM

Council Chambers - 1000 Central Avenue
TELEVISED

1. **OPENING/ROLL CALL**

2. **PUBLIC COMMENT**

3. **APPROVAL OF AGENDA**

4. **BUSINESS**

- A. [RE0309-16](#) Approval of Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-13. A Resolution Removing Uncollectible Utility Accounts from Accounts receivable List of Los Alamos County - Fiscal Year 2011

Presenters: Bob Westervelt, Deputy Utilities Manager - Finance/Admin

Attachments: [A - Resolution No 16-13](#)

- B. [RE0316-16](#) Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-14, An Election Resolution Setting Forth One Question To Be Submitted At The November 8, 2016 General Election To The Voters Of The Incorporated County Of Los Alamos, Which Question Would Consolidate All Remaining Powers And Duties Of The Sheriff To The Police Department And Would Abolish The Office Of The Sheriff As An Elective Office.

Presenters: County Council - Regular Session

Attachments: [A - Publication Notice](#)
[B - Resolution No. 16-14 \(English\)](#)
[C - Resolution No. 16-14 \(Spanish\)](#)

5. **COUNCIL BUSINESS**

A. *Appointments*

B. *Board, Commission and Committee Liaison Reports*

C. *County Manager's Report*

- D. Council Chair Report***
- E. General Council Business***
- F. Approval of Councilor Expenses***
- G. Preview of Upcoming Agenda Items***
- 6. COUNCILOR COMMENTS**
- 7. PUBLIC COMMENT**
- 8. ADJOURNMENT**

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the County Human Resources Division at 662-8040 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes can be provided in various accessible formats. Please contact the personnel in the Office of the County Administrator at 663-1750 if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed.



County of Los Alamos

Staff Report

August 09, 2016

Los Alamos, NM 87544
www.losalamosnm.us

Agenda No.: A.

Index (Council Goals): 2015 Council Goal – Quality Governance – Operational Excellence – Maintain Quality Essential Services and Supporting Infrastructure

Presenters: Bob Westervelt, Deputy Utilities Manager - Finance/Admin

Legislative File: RE0309-16

Title

Approval of Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-13. A Resolution Removing Uncollectible Utility Accounts from Accounts receivable List of Los Alamos County - Fiscal Year 2011

Recommended Action

I move that Council approve Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16 -13; A Resolution Removing Uncollectible Utility Accounts from Accounts Receivable List of Los Alamos County for Fiscal Year 2011.

..Utilities Manager's Recommendation

The Utilities Manager recommends that Council approve the resolution as requested.

Board, Commission or Committee Recommendation

The Board of Public Utilities recommends that Council approve the resolution as requested.

Body

Pursuant to 3-37-7 NMSA 1978, it is requested that Council approve the write off and removal of these uncollectible accounts. These accounts have been uncollectible for five (5) years, and all avenues for collection by the county have been exhausted. The Board of Public Utilities is scheduled to approve this item on July 20th.

The New Mexico Attorney General's Opinion 70-88 indicated that writing off such uncollectible accounts has no effect on the County's future right to collection if circumstances change, and if collection is not barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

The amount of write-off for each utility was determined from the actual amounts billed. This schedule also shows the ratio of total uncollectible accounts per revenue dollar. APPA reports that comparably sized utilities (5,000 - 10,000 customers) have median ratio values of .0031 for uncollectible accounts. The County has a ratio of .0005 for FY2011, excluding sales to DOE. This shows that in FY2011 the County's ratio of uncollectible utility accounts is lower than other utilities based on median values.

Write-offs for fiscal year 2011 include one bankrupted account, totaling \$852.14. Also, 37 accounts totaling \$13,782.89 were sent to CreditWatch and/or J.C.C. Christensen & Associates, the collection agencies contracted by Los Alamos County to assist in collecting on outstanding final accounts in which previous collection efforts have failed.

Alternatives

The alternative is to maintain these amounts as receivables, an asset, on the County's books, with an offsetting liability, allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Fiscal and Staff Impact/Planned Item

Utility	FY2011
---------	--------

Electric	\$4,708.86
----------	------------

Gas	\$3,428.33
-----	------------

Water	\$2,139.84
-------	------------

Sewer	\$3,197.01
-------	------------

Subtotal	\$13,474.04 (amount requiring Utility Board Approval)
----------	---

Refuse	\$2,552.47
--------	------------

TOTAL	\$16,026.51
-------	-------------

Attachments

A - Resolution No 16-13

INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS RESOLUTION NO. 16-13

**A RESOLUTION REMOVING UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY
ACCOUNTS FROM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE LIST OF
LOS ALAMOS COUNTY**

WHEREAS, Robert Westervelt, Deputy Utilities Manager-Finance and Administration, has stated that:

1. The accounts listed are unsecured receivables incurred for the services or fees outlined in Exhibit "A" attached hereto;
2. Monthly statements were mailed and numerous phone calls were made in an effort to locate the debtors and collect the receivables;
3. The accounts have been uncollectible for more than four (4) years; and
4. In the opinion of the Deputy Utilities Manager-Finance, the accounts are uncollectible.

WHEREAS, collection efforts with respect to the uncollectible accounts have been unsuccessful and the uncollectible accounts remain on the list of accounts receivable of Los Alamos County; and

WHEREAS, the County wishes to remove the uncollectible accounts from the list of accounts receivable as authorized by Section 3-37-7, NMSA 1978.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS HEREBY RESOLVES THAT:

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 3-37-7, NMSA 1978, the uncollectible accounts, including but not limited to those uncollectible accounts that have been discharged in bankruptcy, are hereby removed from the list of accounts receivable of Los Alamos County.

Section 2. Nothing in this Resolution or the removal of the accounts from the list of accounts receivable shall have any effect on Los Alamos County's future rights to collection as to the uncollectible accounts and the discharged accounts if circumstances change.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016.

**COUNCIL OF THE INCORPORATED
COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO**

**Rick Reiss
Council Chair**

ATTEST: (Seal)

**Sharon Stover
Los Alamos County Clerk**

WRITE OFF ACCOUNTS FY11

Account Number	Customer Name	Amount Due
2075708	CARTER - 10 STABLE LOT RD	\$ 5.08
2080708	KYLE MOORE AND CHASE GOKEY	\$ 13.24
2062848	MIGUEL RODRIGUEZ	\$ 18.06
2076488	MEGAN KREPPS	\$ 21.76
2039318	CHRISTINA HABERKORN	\$ 23.33
2012790	JOHNSON/ 2120-A 34TH ST	\$ 35.51
2072968	DARIUS HINSON	\$ 35.80
2077598	NICHOLAS MAXEY	\$ 40.54
2019738	RHONDA CARTER	\$ 47.41
2079858	ERAN WILLBANKS	\$ 58.84
2082238	SARAH ELLENBERG	\$ 66.62
2008562	TERRY CHALTRAW	\$ 71.14
2080818	DENNIS MARCELL	\$ 74.65
2015981	REA - LORI CLAY - 2439A 46TH	\$ 84.21
2080038	MERLIN WHITE	\$ 85.02
2084058	JOSHUA NOBILE	\$ 86.12
2007309	MATT ROYBAL	\$ 93.13
2073708	VICTORIA GONZALEZ	\$ 93.78
2052948	QUEVIN REDDING	\$ 114.07
2067878	ANDREW C LAWRENCE	\$ 137.55
2005707	KEN DANIEL	\$ 142.41
2055678	MICHELLE PADILLA	\$ 144.68
2066698	IVEY WILKS	\$ 154.08
2017556	CASA MESITA	\$ 159.26
2004918	GAYLA HASTINGS	\$ 176.37
2039928	JULIE ADAMS	\$ 190.64
2042248	ROSA BUSTAMANTE	\$ 200.72
2082338	KRISTOFER PELTZ	\$ 201.18
2080998	JODY BODINE	\$ 209.59
2079298	NASARIO MALDONADO	\$ 213.07
2071128	BRUNNER SONS, LLC	\$ 220.29
2073428	GREG HARMON	\$ 222.21
2074598	BONNIE CUMMINS	\$ 232.98
2066268	DANA ELLIOTT	\$ 246.98
2054638	PEDRO SALAZAR AND DIANNA GARCIA	\$ 293.93
2066828	MICHELLE AND JOSEPH ELDER	\$ 309.92
2071088	LAURI RHOADES	\$ 327.75
2079308	SCOTT FREDERICK	\$ 333.58
2063638	JASON MARTINEZ	\$ 412.59

2053958	KRISTY HUTSON		\$	428.81
2053418	DANELLE AND JASON BYRD		\$	429.48
2061748	TRUDY YATES		\$	429.79
2028958	MR DAVID FLORES		\$	437.94
2060978	TOM AND NANETTE CISLO		\$	440.48
2008587	MISTY WILSON		\$	473.77
2075948	DANIELLE RODRIGUEZ		\$	521.45
2068288	BARBARA RILEY		\$	532.48
2002073	PENNY STEPHENS		\$	536.00
2075638	TRAVIS COSTELLO		\$	563.52
2036218	HIGINIO GUTIERREZ		\$	569.76
2071678	NICHOLAS CURTIS		\$	570.26
2083498	PAYAN SON'S		\$	672.44
2081058	AARON MILLS		\$	720.32
2004829	REGGIE BRIGGLE		\$	931.20
2008851	DERRICK JAMESON		\$	1,318.58
			\$	15,174.37
2076718	LYNN WALLINGTON	Bankruptcy	\$	852.14
			\$	852.14

TOTAL WRITE OFFS **\$ 16,026.51**



County of Los Alamos

Los Alamos, NM 87544
www.losalamosnm.us

Staff Report

August 09, 2016

Agenda No.: B.
Index (Council Goals):
Presenters:
Legislative File: RE0316-16

Title

Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-14, An Election Resolution Setting Forth One Question To Be Submitted At The November 8, 2016 General Election To The Voters Of The Incorporated County Of Los Alamos, Which Question Would Consolidate All Remaining Powers And Duties Of The Sheriff To The Police Department And Would Abolish The Office Of The Sheriff As An Elective Office.

Recommended Action

I move that Council adopt Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-14, English and Spanish, An Election Resolution Setting Forth One Question To Be Submitted At The November 8, 2016 General Election To The Voters Of The Incorporated County Of Los Alamos, Which Question Would Consolidate All Remaining Powers And Duties Of The Sheriff To The Police Department And Would Abolish The Office Of The Sheriff As An Elective Office.

County Manager's Recommendation

The County Manager recommends that Council adopt Incorporated County of Los Alamos Resolution No. 16-14, English and Spanish.

Body

On June 14, 2016 Council approved Ordinance No. 665 that set forth changes to the Charter to abolish the office of the Sheriff of Los Alamos County at the end of the current term in 2018. The Ordinance required that the Charter amendment be placed before the voters at the November 8, 2016 General Election. Council must adopt the question so that the County Clerk is able to submit the question to the Secretary of State for inclusion on the election ballot.

Alternatives

Should Council fail to adopt the Resolution, it would be acting in violation of its Ordinance to allow voters to decide the question in the November General Election.

Attachments

- A - Publication Notice
- B - Resolution No. 16-14 (English)
- C - Resolution No. 16-14 (Spanish)

INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS LEGAL NOTICE PUBLICATION FORM

THIS FORM WITH COPY TO BE PUBLISHED TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE CLERK'S OFFICE

Date: July 19, 2016

Publish: Ordinance No.: _____ Code Ordinance No.: _____
Resolution No.: 16-14 - English & Spanish
Introduction: _____
Council Meeting: 9-Aug-16
(Date)
Passed & Adopted on: _____
(Date)
Other: _____

Publish at least 7 before Council Meeting, (or) _____ Publish after adoption.

Publish in (Summary) X or in (Full) _____

Publish: X _____
(once) (twice) (three) (other)

Comments: Publish in local newspaper, post at Municipal Building and Library and White Rock Branch.

Submitting Department: Los Alamos County Council
By: Rick Reiss, Council Chair

County Attorney: By: /s/Pauline Maestas

SUBMIT ORIGINAL COPIES OF ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS TO COUNTY ATTORNEY.

203 ORDINANCES

203.2.2 PUBLICATION AND HEARING

A notice of the proposed adoption of an ordinance shall be published once at least seven days before the Council meeting at which it is to be considered. The notice shall include the entire ordinance or a summary of it and shall state the time and place for a public hearing on the ordinance. If a summary is published, the notice shall state the times and places at which the entire ordinance is available for examination and/or purchase.

203.2.3 ADOPTION

After the public hearing, the Council may adopt the ordinance. . . . If the ordinance is amended in any matter of substance, however, the Council may not adopt it until this has been subjected to the publication and hearing requirements for a newly introduced ordinance. A notice of adoption of the ordinance together with the entire ordinance shall be published The Council may adopt all or part of any standard code of technical regulations by reference to the code in adopting an ordinance. It shall not be necessary to publish the entire code, but copies of it shall be made available for examination and/or purchase by the public in the manner required for proposed and adopted ordinances.

203.4 RESOLUTIONS

Every proposed resolution shall be published in full or in summary at least seven days before the Council meeting at which it is to be considered. If a summary is published, copies of the entire proposed resolution shall be made available to the public for examination and/or purchase at the Clerk's office.

Copy to Clerk's Office

Copy to CAO

Copy to Submitting Department

INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS RESOLUTION NO. 16-14

AN ELECTION RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH ONE QUESTION TO BE SUBMITTED AT THE NOVEMBER 8, 2016 GENERAL ELECTION TO THE VOTERS OF THE INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS, WHICH QUESTION WOULD CONSOLIDATE ALL REMAINING POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE SHERIFF TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND WOULD ABOLISH THE OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF AS AN ELECTIVE OFFICE

WHEREAS, the Los Alamos County Council on June 14, 2016, adopted Ordinance No. 665 calling for submittal to the electorate as a single ballot question at the November 8, 2016 general election proposed amendment to Article III, Subsections 304.1 and 304.4, Article IX, Section 911, and Article X, Section 1006 of the Los Alamos County Charter, relating to the office of the Sheriff, as shown in full in Exhibit "A" of this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Los Alamos County Council hereby determines and declares that the submittal of the question concerning the proposed charter amendments to the qualified electors of the County is duly authorized under Section 900 of the Charter.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Incorporated County of Los Alamos that:

Section 1. The following question shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the Incorporated County of Los Alamos for adoption or rejection at the November 8, 2016, General Election:

QUESTION NO. 1

Shall Articles III, IX and X of the Charter of the Incorporated County of Los Alamos be amended, pursuant to Resolution No. 16-14 relating to the office of the Sheriff, to amend subsections 304.1 and 304.4, and sections 911 and 1006 to consolidate all remaining powers and duties of the office of the sheriff to the police department and to abolish the office of the sheriff as an elective office effective January 1, 2019?

For ☐
Against ☐

Section 2. The County's qualified electors are eligible to vote on the Election Question. No judge or clerk of election shall allow a person to vote unless he or she is duly registered as a voter with the County Clerk.

Section 3. Persons desiring to vote at the Election must be registered to vote. Any person who is otherwise qualified to vote and who is not currently registered may register at the office of the Los Alamos County Clerk on or before 5:00 p.m. on October 11, 2016.

Section 4. The vote shall be canvassed as provided in Section 1-13-1 NMSA 1978, et seq., and the County Council shall certify the results of the Election and file the certificate of canvass in the official minute book of the County.

Section 5. This Resolution shall be published in the English and Spanish languages at least once a week for two consecutive weeks, the first being published between fifty and sixty days before the date of the Election in a newspaper or newspapers which maintain an office in and are of general circulation in the County and which otherwise qualify as legal newspapers in the County. The full text of the proposed amendments shall be posted in the English and Spanish languages at each voting place. The County Clerk is hereby instructed and authorized to carry out this provision.

Section 6. The officers of the County are hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the County, to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the preparation of affidavits, instructions and election supplies, and the publication of notices.

Section 7. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution, shall for any reason, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.

Section 8. All bylaws, orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, or resolution, or parts hereof, heretofore repealed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2016.

**COUNCIL OF THE INCORPORATED COUNTY
OF LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXICO**

Rick Reiss
Council Chair

ATTEST:

Sharon Stover
Los Alamos County Clerk

Exhibit "A"

- 304.1. *Other County Officers—Compensation.* The offices of Clerk, and Assessor, ~~and Sheriff~~ of the County shall be elective. Each of said officers shall be paid at a rate of compensation to be set by ordinance. Any ordinance changing compensation shall not go into effect during the term in which it was passed or during the final three months of a term of office of any said officers. The Council shall, by ordinance, provide for reimbursement of the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the Clerk, and Assessor ~~and Sheriff~~.
- 304.4. *Duties of the ~~Sheriff~~, Police Department and Peace Officers.* The Council shall establish as a department of the County, a Police Department to be charged with conserving the peace and enforcing the laws of the State and the ordinances of the County. The ~~Sheriff~~ Police Department shall have those powers and duties assigned to sheriffs by state statutes, ~~including the powers of a peace officer, but the Sheriff shall not duplicate or perform those duties in this Charter or by ordinance or resolution assigned or delegated to the County's Police Department.~~
911. *Filling of Vacancies.* When a vacancy occurs in the elective offices of Clerk, or Assessor, ~~or Sheriff~~, the County Council shall appoint a qualified person to fill such office for the remainder of the unexpired term.
1006. *Abolition of Offices.* The offices of Treasurer, ~~and Surveyor, and Sheriff~~ of Los Alamos County are abolished as elective offices.

RESOLUCIÓN NÚM. 16-14 DEL CONDADO INCORPORADO DE LOS ALAMOS

RESOLUCIÓN ELECTORAL QUE EXPONE UNA PREGUNTA QUE SE PRESENTARÁ EN LAS ELECCIONES GENERALES DEL 8 DE NOVIEMBRE DE 2016 A LOS ELECTORES DEL CONDADO INCORPORADO DE LOS ALAMOS, CUYA PREGUNTA CONSOLIDARÍA TODOS LOS PODERES Y OBLIGACIONES RESTANTES DEL SHERIFF CON EL DEPARTAMENTO DE POLICÍA Y ABOLIRÍA EL CARGO DE SHERIFF COMO CARGO DE ELECCIÓN DEMOCRÁTICA

CONSIDERANDO que el Consejo del Condado de Los Álamos el 14 de junio de 2016 adoptó la Ordenanza Núm. 665 pidiendo que se presente al electorado como única propuesta en las elecciones generales del 8 de noviembre de 2016 la enmienda propuesta del Artículo III, Subsecciones 304.1 y 304.4, del Artículo IX, Sección 911, y del Artículo X, Sección 1006 de los Estatutos del Condado de Los Álamos, relacionados con el cargo de Sheriff, como se muestra en su totalidad en el Anexo "A" de esta Resolución; y

CONSIDERANDO que el Consejo del Condado de Los Álamos, mediante la presente, determina y declara que la presentación a los electores cualificados del Condado de la pregunta relativa a las enmiendas propuestas a los Estatutos queda debidamente autorizada, conforme a la Sección 900 de los Estatutos.

AHORA, POR LO TANTO, QUEDA RESUELTO por el organismo de gobierno del Condado incorporado de Los Álamos que:

Sección 1. La siguiente pregunta se presentará a los electores cualificados del Condado incorporado de Los Álamos para ser adoptada o rechazada en las elecciones generales del 8 de noviembre de 2016.

PREGUNTA NÚM. 1

¿Se enmendarán los Artículos III, IX y X de los Estatutos del Condado incorporado de Los Álamos, conforme a la Resolución Núm. 16-14 relacionada con el cargo de Sheriff, para enmendar las subsecciones 304.1 y 304.4, y secciones 911 y 1006 para consolidar todos los poderes y responsabilidades del cargo de sheriff con el departamento de policía y abolir el cargo de sheriff como cargo de elección democrática, con vigor el 1 de enero de 2019?

A favor ☐

En contra ☐

Sección 2. Los electores cualificados del Condado son elegibles para votar sobre la Pregunta electoral. Ningún juez o secretario electoral permitirán votar a las personas que no estén debidamente registradas como electores en la oficina del Actuario de Condado.

Sección 3. Las personas que deseen votar en las elecciones deben estar registradas para votar. Cualquier persona que de otro modo este cualificada para votar y que no esté registrada actualmente, puede registrarse en la oficina del Actuario del Condado de Los Álamos hasta las 5:00 de la tarde del día 11 de octubre de 2016.

Sección 4. Se hará un escrutinio del voto según se dispone en la Sección 1-13-1 NMSA 1978 y siguientes, y el Consejo del Condado certificará los resultados de las elecciones y registrará el certificado de escrutinio en el libro oficial de actas del Condado.

Sección 5. La Resolución se publicará en inglés y en español, al menos una vez a la semana durante dos semanas consecutivas, en un periódico o periódicos de circulación general en el condado y que mantengan una oficina en el Condado y que por lo demás se consideren periódicos legales en el Condado. La primera publicación será entre cincuenta y sesenta días antes de la fecha de las elecciones. El texto íntegro de las enmiendas propuestas se hará público en inglés y en español en cada lugar de votación. El Actuario del Condado mediante la presente recibe instrucciones y queda autorizado para llevar a cabo esta disposición.

Sección 6. Los funcionarios del Condado mediante la presente reciben órdenes y quedan autorizados por el Condado, y en su nombre, para tomar las medidas necesarias o apropiadas para efectuar las disposiciones de esta Resolución, incluidos los aspectos generales de lo expuesto anteriormente, la preparación de declaraciones, instrucciones y suministros electorales y la publicación de avisos.

Sección 7. Si alguna sección, párrafo o disposición de esta Resolución por algún motivo se considerase inválida o no ejecutable, la invalidez o no ejecutabilidad de dicha sección, párrafo, cláusula o disposición no afectara ninguna de las disposiciones restantes de esta Resolución.

Sección 8. Todos los reglamentos, órdenes y resoluciones o porciones de los mismos, que sean inconsistentes con lo expuesto por la presente quedan revocados hasta el grado solamente de dicha inconsistencia. Esta revocación no se interpretará como la reactivación de cualquier reglamento, orden o resolución o porciones de los mismos, hasta el momento revocados.

APROBADO Y ADOPTADO este día 9 de agosto de 2016.

**CONSEJO DEL CONDADO INCORPORADO DE
LOS ALAMOS, NUEVO MÉXICO**

Rick Reiss
Presidente del Consejo

DOY FE:

Sharon Stover
Actuaria del Condado de Los Álamos

Anexo "A"

- 304.1. *Otros funcionarios del Condado—Compensación.* Los cargos de Actuario, y Tasador, ~~y Sheriff~~ del Condado serán cargos de elección democrática. Cada uno de dichos funcionarios recibirá compensación conforme a una tasa establecida por ordenanza. Toda ordenanza que cambie la compensación no entrará en vigor durante el periodo en el cual fue aprobada o durante los últimos tres meses del periodo del cargo de cualquiera de dichos funcionarios. El Consejo, mediante ordenanza, proporcionará el reembolso de los gastos reales y necesarios incurridos por el Actuario, y Tasador ~~y Sheriff~~.
- 304.4. *Obligaciones del Sheriff, Departamento de policía y agentes de la autoridad.* El Consejo establecerá como un departamento del Condado, un Departamento de policía, encargado de mantener el orden y hacer que se cumplan las leyes del estado y las ordenanzas del Condado. El Sheriff Departamento de policía tendrá aquellos poderes y obligaciones asignados al sheriff por los derechos escritos del estado, ~~incluidos los poderes de agente de la autoridad; pero el Sheriff no repetirá ni realizará esas obligaciones en este Estatuto o por ordenanza o resolución asignados o delegados al Departamento de policía del Condado.~~
911. *Cubrir vacantes.* Cuando se produce una vacante en uno de los cargos de elección democrática de Actuario, o Tasador, ~~o Sheriff~~, el Consejo del Condado nombrará a una persona cualificada para cubrir dicha vacante durante el resto del período del cargo no vencido.
1006. *Abolición de cargos.* Los cargos de Tesorero, ~~y~~ Topógrafo, y Sheriff del Condado de Los Álamos quedan abolidos como cargos de elección democrática.